

Prospectus

April 30, 2025

Overseas Variable Fund

Ticker | FEOVX

On March 3, 2025, First Eagle Holdings, Inc. announced a definitive agreement under which funds managed by Genstar Capital will make a majority investment in First Eagle Holdings, Inc. First Eagle Holdings, Inc. is the parent company to First Eagle Investment Management, LLC, which is the investment adviser to the First Eagle Overseas Variable Fund (the "Fund"). Genstar Capital is a private equity firm focused on investments in targeted segments of the financial services, healthcare, industrials, and software industries.

The transaction will involve the buyout of all interests in First Eagle Holdings, Inc. currently held by funds indirectly controlled by Blackstone Inc. and Corsair Capital LLC and certain related co-investors. The transaction is expected to be completed in the second half of 2025, subject to customary closing conditions, including obtaining necessary fund and client consents and customary regulatory approvals.

As required under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the "1940 Act"), closing of the transaction will be deemed an "assignment" of the current investment management agreement between the First Eagle Variable Funds and First Eagle Investment Management, LLC with respect to the Fund, which will result in automatic termination of the agreements. On April 3, 2025, the Board of Trustees of the First Eagle Variable Funds (the "Board") considered a new substantially identical investment management agreement with First Eagle Investment Management, LLC with respect to the Fund, which it approved and will be presented to the shareholders of the Fund for approval, and, if so approved by shareholders, will take effect upon closing of the transaction or such later time as shareholder approval is obtained.

The transaction is not expected to result in any change in the portfolio management of the Fund or in the Fund's investment objectives or policies.

Advised by First Eagle Investment Management, LLC

The Securities and Exchange Commission has not approved or disapproved these securities or passed upon the adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Thank you for your interest in First Eagle Variable Funds (the "Trust"), managed by First Eagle Investment Management, LLC (the "Adviser").

Table of Contents

More Information about the Fund's Investments

Investment Objective and Strategies of the Fund11	
Principal Investment Risks	
Defensive Investment Strategies	
Disclosure of Portfolio Holdings	
Fund Index	

Fund Management

The Adviser
Approval of Advisory Agreement

About Your Investment

Useful Shareholder InformationBack	Cover
Financial Highlights	26
Derivative Actions Brought on Behalf of the Trust	24
Contractual Arrangements	24
Information on Dividends, Distributions and Taxes	23
Information Regarding State Escheatment Laws	22
Short-Term Trading Policies	22
Revenue Sharing	21
Distribution and/or Shareholder Services Expenses	21
How Fund Share Prices Are Calculated	20
Anti-Money Laundering Compliance	20
How to Purchase Shares	20

First Eagle Overseas Variable Fund

Summary Information

Investment Objective

First Eagle Overseas Variable Fund (the "Fund") seeks long-term growth of capital by investing primarily in equities, including common and preferred stocks, warrants or other similar rights, and convertible securities, issued by non-U.S. companies.

Fees and Expenses of the Fund

The following information describes the fees and expenses you may pay if you buy, hold and sell shares of the Fund. The expenses shown do not reflect charges imposed by variable annuity contracts and variable life insurance policies (collectively "Variable Contracts") issued by the life insurance companies through which the Fund is offered.

Annual Fund Operating Expenses (expenses you pay each year as a percentage of the value of your inves	stment)
Management Fees*	0.75
Distribution and Service (12b-1) Fees	0.25
Other Expenses**	0.54
Total Annual Operating Expenses	1.54
Fee Waiver and/or Expense Reimbursement*	-0.33
Total Annual Operating Expenses After Fee Waiver and/or Expense Reimbursement	1.21

* First Eagle Investment Management, LLC (the "Adviser") has contractually agreed to waive and/or reimburse certain fees and expenses so that the total annual operating expenses (excluding interest, taxes, brokerage commissions, acquired fund fees and expenses, dividend and interest expenses relating to short sales, and extraordinary expenses, if any) ("annual operating expenses") are limited to 1.21% of average net assets. This undertaking lasts until April 29, 2026 and may not be terminated during its term without the consent of the Board of Trustees. The Fund has agreed that it will repay the Adviser for fees and expenses waived or reimbursed provided that repayment does not cause annual operating expenses (after the repayment is taken into account) to exceed the lesser of: (1) 1.21% the Fund's average net assets; or (2) if applicable, the then-current expense limitation. Any such repayment must be made within three years after the year in which the Adviser incurred the expense.

** "Other Expenses" shown generally reflect actual expenses for the Fund for fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.

Example

The following example is intended to help you compare the cost of investing in the Fund with the cost of investing in other mutual funds. This hypothetical example assumes that you invest \$10,000 in the Fund for the time periods indicated and then either redeem or do not redeem all of your shares at the end of those periods. The example also assumes that the average annual return is 5% and operating expenses remain the same. The example does not reflect charges imposed by the Variable Contracts and the costs shown in the example would be higher if those charges were reflected.

	1 Year	3 Years	5 Years	10 Years
Sold or Held	\$123	\$454	\$808	\$1,806

Portfolio Turnover Rate

The Fund pays transaction costs, such as commissions, when it buys and sells securities (or "turns over" its portfolio). A higher portfolio turnover rate may indicate higher transaction costs and may result in higher taxes when Fund shares are held in a taxable account (which would typically not be the case for a Variable Contract). These costs, which are not reflected in Annual Fund Operating Expenses or in the Example above, affect the Fund's performance. During the most recent fiscal year, the Fund's portfolio turnover rate was 21.99% of the average value of its portfolio.

Principal Investment Strategies

To achieve its objective, under normal circumstances the Fund will invest primarily in equities, including common and preferred stocks, warrants or other similar rights to purchase a company's securities, and convertible securities, issued by non-U.S. companies. The Fund may invest in securities traded in mature markets (for example, Canada, Japan, Germany and France) and in countries whose economies are still developing (sometimes called "emerging markets"). The Fund particularly seeks companies that have financial strength and stability, strong management and fundamental value ("fundamental value" is a term commonly used by value investors to refer to their estimate of the value an educated buyer would place on a company as a whole). Normally, the Fund invests at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in foreign securities (including American Depositary Receipts, Global Depositary Receipts and European Depositary Receipts) and "counts" relevant derivative positions towards this "80% of assets" allocation, and in doing so, values each position at the price at which it is held on the Fund's books (generally market price, but anticipates valuing each such position for purposes of assessing compliance with this test at notional value in connection with new rules requiring that treatment). The Fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in debt instruments (e.g., notes and bonds). Investment decisions for the Fund are made without regard to the capitalization (size) of the companies in which it invests. The Fund may invest in any size company, including large, medium and smaller companies. The Fund may invest in debt instruments (without regard to credit rating or time to maturity), including shortterm debt instruments, gold and other precious metals, and futures contracts related to precious metals.

The Fund may make certain investments through one or more special purpose trading subsidiaries (each, a "Subsidiary"). Any Subsidiary will be a wholly-owned and controlled subsidiary of the Fund. Generally, any Subsidiary will invest in commodities and related instruments (primarily gold bullion and other precious metals and related futures contracts).

Although the Fund shares a similar name and investment objective to First Eagle Overseas Fund (a portfolio of the First Eagle Funds family), the two do not apply identical investment strategies.

Principal Investment Risks

As with any mutual fund investment, you may lose money by investing in the Fund. The likelihood of loss may be greater if you invest for a shorter period of time. An investment in the Fund is not intended to be a complete investment program.

Principal risks of investing in the Fund, which could adversely affect its net asset value and total return, are:

- Market Risk The value and liquidity of the Fund's portfolio holdings may fluctuate in response to events specific to the issuers or markets in which the Fund invests, as well as economic, political, or social events in the United States or abroad. Markets may be volatile, and prices of individual securities and other investments, including those of a particular type, may decline significantly and rapidly in response to adverse issuer, political, regulatory, market, economic or other developments, public perceptions concerning these developments, and adverse investor sentiment or publicity. Recent market conditions and events, including a global public health crisis, wars and armed conflicts and actions taken by governments in response, may exacerbate volatility. Rapid changes in prices or liquidity, which often are not anticipated and can relate to events not connected to particular investments, may limit the ability of the Fund to dispose of its assets at the price or time of its choosing and can result in losses. Changes in prices may be temporary or may last for extended periods.
- Equity Risk The value of the Fund's portfolio holdings may fluctuate in response to the risk that the prices of equity securities, including common stock, rise and fall daily. These price movements may result from factors affecting individual companies, industries or the securities market as a whole. In addition, equity markets tend to move in cycles, which may cause stock prices to fall over short or extended periods of time. Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than debt securities.
- **Preferred Stock Risk** The Fund may invest in preferred stock. Unlike common stock, preferred stock generally pays a fixed dividend from a company's earnings and may have a preference over common stock on the distribution of a company's assets in the event of bankruptcy or liquidation. Preferred stockholders' liquidation rights are subordinate to the company's debt holders and creditors. If interest rates rise, the fixed dividend on preferred stocks may be less attractive and the price of preferred stocks may decline.
- Warrants Risk The Fund may invest in warrants. Warrants can provide a greater potential for profit or loss than an equivalent investment in the underlying security. Prices of warrants do not necessarily move in tandem with the prices of the underlying securities and therefore are highly volatile and speculative investments.
- **Convertible Security Risk** Convertible securities generally offer lower interest or dividend yields than non-convertible securities of similar quality. Convertible securities may gain

or lose value due to changes in the issuer's operating results, financial condition, credit rating and changes in interest rates and other general economic, industry and market conditions.

- Foreign Investment Risk The Fund invests in foreign investments (including American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs"), Global Depositary Receipts ("GDRs") and European Depositary Receipts ("EDRs")). Foreign investments, which can be denominated in any applicable foreign currency, are susceptible to less politically, economically and socially stable environments, foreign currency and exchange rate changes, and adverse changes to government regulations. The risks may be more pronounced with respect to investments in emerging markets. While depositary receipts provide an alternative to directly purchasing the underlying foreign securities in their respective national markets and currencies, investments in ADRs, GDRs and EDRs continue to be subject to many of the risks associated with investing directly in foreign investments. Additionally, dividends and interest received by the Fund and capital gains recognized by the Fund may give rise to withholding and other taxes imposed by foreign countries and may decrease the Fund's return.
- Geographic Investment Risk To the extent the Fund invests a significant portion of its assets in the securities of companies of a single country or region, it is more likely to be impacted by events or conditions affecting that country or region. While the Fund reserves the right to dynamically allocate its assets across countries and regions, listed below are some of the geographies to which the Fund has significant exposure as of the date of this Prospectus.

Canada Risk — The Canadian economy is susceptible to adverse changes in certain commodities markets, including those related to the mining and agricultural industries. It is also heavily dependent on trading with key partners. Any reduction in this trading may adversely affect the Canadian economy. Recent political developments in the United States have raised potential implications for the current trade arrangements between the United States and Canada, which could negatively affect the value of Canadian securities.

European Risk — The Fund's investments may subject it to the risks associated with investing in the European markets, including the risks associated with the United Kingdom's exit from the European Union ("Brexit") and the war in Ukraine. Investments in a single region, even though representing a number of different countries within the region, may be affected by common economic forces and other factors. Further, political or economic disruptions in European countries, even in countries in which the Fund is not invested, may adversely affect security values and thus the Fund's holdings. The impact of Brexit on the United Kingdom and European economies is still not fully understood, but could result in increased volatility and illiquidity and lower economic growth for companies that rely significantly on the United Kingdom and/or Europe for their business activities and revenues. Any further exits from the European Union, or an increase in the belief that such exits are likely or possible, would likely cause additional market disruption globally and introduce new legal and regulatory uncertainties. Recent political developments in the United States have raised potential implications for the current trade arrangements between the United States and Europe, which could negatively affect the value of European securities.

Japan Risk — The Japanese economy is heavily dependent upon international trade and may be subject to considerable degrees of economic, political and social instability, which could negatively affect the Fund. Japan has also experienced natural disasters, such as earthquakes and tidal waves, of varying degrees of severity, which also could negatively affect the Fund. Recent political developments in the United States have raised potential implications for the current trade arrangements between the United States and Japan, which could negatively affect the value of Japanese securities.

South Korea Risk — The South Korean economy is heavily reliant on trading exports and disruptions or decreases in trade activity could lead to further declines. Investments in South Korean issuers may subject the Fund to legal, regulatory, political, currency, security and economic risks that are specific to South Korea. Periods of political instability, including recent events, may negatively impact the South Korean economy. Economic and political developments of South Korea's neighbors, including escalated tensions involving North Korea and any outbreak of hostilities involving North Korea, or even the threat of an outbreak of such hostilities, may have a severe adverse effect on the South Korean economy.

- Emerging Market Risk When the Fund invests in emerging market securities (generally meaning those associated with less developed markets), the Fund may be exposed to market, credit, currency, liquidity, legal, political, technical and other risks different from, and generally greater than, the risks of investing in developed markets. Emerging market countries typically have less-established market economies than developed countries and may face greater social, economic, regulatory and political uncertainties. In addition, emerging markets typically present greater illiquidity and price volatility concerns due to smaller or limited local capital markets and greater difficulty in determining market valuations of securities due to limited public information on issuers.
- Small and Medium-Size Company Risk The Fund may invest in small and medium-size companies, the securities of which can be more volatile in price than those of larger companies. Positions in smaller companies, especially when the Fund is a large holder of a small company's securities, also may be more difficult or expensive to trade. The Fund

considers small companies to be companies with market capitalizations of less than \$1 billion and medium-size companies to have market capitalizations of less than \$10 billion.

- Large-Size Company Risk The Fund may invest in larger, more established companies, the securities of which may be unable to respond quickly to new competitive challenges like changes in consumer tastes or innovative smaller competitors. Larger companies are sometimes unable to attain the high growth rates of successful, smaller companies, especially during extended periods of economic expansion. The Fund considers large companies to be companies with market capitalizations of \$10 billion or greater.
- Credit and Interest Rate Risk The value of the Fund's portfolio may fluctuate in response to the risk that the issuer of a bond or other instrument will not be able to make payments of interest and principal when due. The Fund may invest in debt instruments that are rated below investment grade, commonly known as "high yield" or "junk" bonds, which are considered speculative, and carry a higher risk of default. In addition, fluctuations in interest rates can affect the value of debt instruments held by the Fund. A debt instrument's "duration" is a way of measuring a debt instrument's sensitivity to a potential change in interest rates. An increase in interest rates tends to reduce the market value of debt instruments, while a decline in interest rates tends to increase their values. Generally, debt instruments with long maturities and low coupons have the longest durations. Longer-duration instruments tend to be more sensitive to interest rate changes than those with shorter durations. Recent market conditions and events, including increases in interest rates, may exacerbate the risk that borrowers will not be able to make payments of interest and principal when due. During periods of decreasing or prolonged low interest rates, financial markets in which the Fund invests could be negatively affected by, for example, increased volatility, reduced value and liquidity of the Fund's investments, and perceptions of broader economic decline. In addition, there is risk of significant future rate moves and related economic and market impacts. Credit spread risk is the risk that economic and market conditions or any actual or perceived credit deterioration may lead to an increase in the credit spreads (i.e., the difference in yield between two securities of similar maturity but different credit quality) and a decline in price of an issuer's securities.
- Changes in Debt Ratings Risk If a rating agency gives a debt instrument a lower rating, the value of the instrument may decline because investors may demand a higher rate of return.
- Gold Risk The Fund may invest in both physical gold and the securities of companies in the gold mining sector. Prices of gold-related issues are susceptible to changes in U.S. and foreign regulatory policies, taxes, currencies, mining laws,

inflation, and various other market conditions. Gold-related investments as a group have not performed as well as the stock market in general during periods when the U.S. dollar is strong, inflation is low and general economic conditions are stable. In addition, returns on gold-related investments have traditionally been more volatile than investments in broader equity or debt markets.

- **Tax Risk** In order to qualify for the favorable U.S. federal income tax treatment generally afforded to regulated investment companies, the Fund must, among other things, derive at least 90% of its gross income each taxable year from sources generating qualifying income, which include dividends, interest, gain from the sale of stock or securities and other categories of investment income but generally does not include gain from the sale of physical gold or other precious metals. The Fund currently owns positions in physical gold that have appreciated in value. Because any gain from the Fund's sale of such physical gold is expected to be non-qualifying income, if the Fund were to recognize gain from the sale of any such physical gold, the Fund may need to sell other assets that generate qualifying income in order to satisfy the annual 90% qualifying income test in a particular taxable year. It is also possible that the Fund may generate more non-qualifying income than anticipated, might not be able to generate qualifying income in a particular taxable year at levels sufficient to meet the annual 90% qualifying test, or might not be able to determine the percentage of qualifying income it derives for a taxable year until after the end of the taxable year. Failure to qualify as a regulated investment company could have significant negative tax consequences to the Fund and Variable Contract holders.
- **Derivatives Risk** Futures contracts or other "derivatives," including hedging strategies and currency forwards, present risks related to their significant price volatility and risk of default by the counterparty to the contract. To date, derivatives have been used mainly under a hedging program intended to reduce the impact of foreign exchange rate changes on the Fund's value. A futures contract is considered a derivative because it derives its value from the price of the underlying security or financial index. The prices of futures contracts can be volatile and futures contracts may lack liquidity. In addition, there may be imperfect or even negative correlation between the price of a futures contract and the price of the underlying securities or financial index.
- **Currency Risk** Currency risk is the risk that foreign currencies will decline in value relative to that of the U.S. dollar and affect the Fund's investments in non-U.S. currencies or securities that trade in and receive revenue in non-U.S. currencies.
- Value Investment Strategy Risk An investment made at a perceived "margin of safety" or "discount to intrinsic or fundamental value" can trade at prices substantially lower than when an investment is made, so that any perceived

"margin of safety" or "discount to value" is no guarantee against loss. "Value" investments, as a category, or entire industries or sectors associated with such investments, may lose favor with investors as compared to those that are more "growth" oriented. In such an event, the Fund's investment returns would be expected to lag relative to returns associated with more growth-oriented investment strategies. Investing in or having exposure to "value" securities presents the risk that such securities may never reach what the Adviser believes are their full market values.

- Cybersecurity Risk The occurrence of a disaster such as a cyber-attack, a natural catastrophe, an industrial accident, a terrorist attack or war, events unanticipated in the disaster recovery systems of the Fund and Adviser, or a support failure from external providers, could have an adverse effect on the Fund's ability to conduct business and on its results of operations and financial condition, particularly if those events affect the Fund and/or the Adviser's computer-based data processing, transmission, storage, and retrieval systems or destroy data.
- Subsidiary Risk If the Fund invests in one or more Subsidiaries, the Fund will be indirectly exposed to the risks associated with the Subsidiary's investments. Any Subsidiary will not be registered under the 1940 Act and will not be subject to all of the investor protections of the 1940 Act. Changes in the laws governing the operation of a Subsidiary could result in the inability of the Fund and/or any Subsidiary to operate as expected and could adversely affect the Fund.

An investment in the Fund is not a bank deposit and is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or any other government agency.

For more information on the risks of investing in the Fund, please see the More Information about the Fund's Investments section.

Investment Results

The following information provides an indication of the risks of investing in the Fund by showing changes in the Fund's performance from year to year, and by showing how the Fund's average annual returns for the periods shown compare with those of one or more broad measures of market performance, which have characteristics relevant to the Fund's investment strategy. The index is described in the *Fund Index* section. As with all mutual funds, past performance is not an indication of future performance (before or after taxes).

The following information discloses returns on a before-tax basis. After-tax returns depend on an individual investor's tax situation and are generally not relevant for investors who hold shares in tax-deferred arrangements, including most Variable Contracts.

Updated performance information is available by calling **800.747.2008.**

The following bar chart and table assume reinvestment of dividends and distributions and do not reflect any sales charges. If sales charges were included, the returns would be lower.



Calendar Year Total Returns

* For the period presented in the bar chart above.

Average Annual Total Returns as of December 31, 2024

	1 Year	5 Years	10 Years
First Eagle Overseas Variable Fund*	6.10%	3.66%	4.43%
MSCI EAFE Index (reflects no deduction for fees or expenses, but reflects net of withholding taxes)	3.82%	4.73%	5.20%

* Performance data quoted herein does not reflect charges imposed by Variable Contracts issued by the life insurance companies through which the Fund is offered. If those account-level fees and expenses were reflected, performance would be lower.

Our Management Team

First Eagle Investment Management, LLC serves as the Fund's Adviser.

Matthew McLennan, Kimball Brooker, Jr., Christian Heck and Alan Barr are jointly and primarily responsible for the day-today management of the Fund and serve as the Fund's Portfolio Managers. Matthew McLennan and Kimball Brooker, Jr. have served as the Fund's portfolio managers since September 2008 and April 2011, respectively. Christian Heck and Alan Barr have served as the Fund's Portfolio Managers since May 2021.

How to Purchase Shares

Shares of the Fund are offered for purchase by separate accounts of insurance companies for the purpose of serving as an investment medium for Variable Contracts. See the *About Your Investment—How to Purchase Shares* section for more information.

Tax Information

The Fund expects that any distributions from the Fund will be exempt from current federal income taxation to the extent such distributions accumulate in a Variable Contract. For a discussion of the tax consequences of Variable Contracts, please refer to the Prospectus offered by the participating insurance company.

Payments to Insurance Companies and other Financial Intermediaries

If you purchase shares of the Fund through an insurance company or other financial intermediary (such as a bank), the Fund and its related companies may pay the intermediary for the sale of Fund shares and related services. These payments may create a conflict of interest by influencing the insurance company or other intermediary and your salesperson to recommend one Variable Contract over another or be a factor in an insurance company's decision to include the Fund as an underlying investment option in its Variable Contract. Ask your sales person or visit your insurance company's or other financial intermediary's website for more information. See the *About Your Investment—Distribution and/or Shareholder Services Expenses* section for more information.

More Information about the Fund's Investments

Investment Objective and Strategies of the Fund

The Fund seeks long-term growth of capital by investing primarily in equities, including common and preferred stocks, warrants or other similar rights, and convertible securities, issued by non-U.S. companies.

In seeking to achieve this objective, the Fund may invest in securities traded in mature markets and in countries whose economies are still developing. The Fund particularly seeks companies that have financial strength and stability, strong management and fundamental value. Normally, the Fund invests at least 80% of its net assets (plus any borrowings for investment purposes) in foreign securities (including American Depositary Receipts, Global Depositary Receipts and European Depositary Receipts) and "counts" relevant derivative positions towards this "80% of assets" allocation, and in doing so, values each position at the price at which it is held on the Fund's books (generally market price, but anticipates valuing each such position for purposes of assessing compliance with this test at notional value in connection with new rules requiring that treatment. The Fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in debt instruments (e.g., notes and bonds). Investment decisions for the Fund are made without regard to the capitalization (size) of the companies in which it invests. The Fund may invest in any size company, including large, medium and smaller companies. The Fund may invest in debt instruments (without regard to credit rating or time to maturity), including short-term debt instruments, gold and other precious metals and futures contracts related to precious metals. The Fund may make certain investments through one or more special purpose trading subsidiaries (each a "Subsidiary"). Any Subsidiary will be a wholly-owned and controlled Subsidiary of the Fund. Generally, any Subsidiary will invest in commodities and related instruments (primarily gold bullion and other precious metals and related futures contracts).

Although the Fund shares a similar name and investment objective to First Eagle Overseas Fund (a portfolio of the First Eagle Funds family), the two do not apply identical investment strategies.

Change in Investment Objective — Although no change is anticipated, the investment objective of the Fund can be changed without shareholder approval. Shareholders will be notified in writing a minimum of 60 days in advance of any change in investment objective or of any change in the Fund's "80% of assets" investment policy (described above).

Principal Investment Risks

Some of the principal investment risks of the Fund are described below in greater detail than in the Fund Summary at the beginning of this Prospectus. Other investment risks and practices also apply and are described in the Statement of Additional Information, which is available on request (see back cover).

Market Risk — All securities may be subject to adverse market trends. The value and liquidity of the Fund's portfolio holdings may fluctuate in response to events specific to the issuers or stock or bond markets in which the Fund invests, as well as economic, political, or social events in the United States or abroad. Markets can be volatile, and prices of individual securities and other investments at times may decline significantly and rapidly. This may cause the Fund's portfolio to be worth less than the price originally paid for it, or less than it was worth at an earlier time. Market risk may affect a single issuer or the market as a whole. As a result, a portfolio of such securities may underperform the market as a whole. Recent market conditions and events, including a global public health crisis, wars and armed conflicts and actions taken by governments in response, may exacerbate volatility and may continue to negatively affect the price and liquidity of individual securities, national economies and global markets generally. Prices of individual securities and other investments, including those of a particular type, may decline significantly in response to adverse issuer, political, regulatory, market, economic or other developments, public perceptions concerning these developments, and adverse investor sentiment or publicity. Rapid changes in value or liquidity, which often are not anticipated and can relate to events not connected to particular investments, may limit the ability of the Fund to dispose of its assets at the price or time of its choosing and can result in losses. Changes in price may be temporary or may last for extended periods. If the Fund sells a portfolio position before it reaches its market peak, it may miss out on opportunities for better performance.

Equity Risk — The value of the Fund's portfolio holdings may fluctuate in response to the risk that the prices of equity securities, including common stock, rise and fall daily. These price movements may result from factors affecting individual companies, industries or the securities market as a whole. In addition, equity markets tend to move in cycles, which may cause stock prices to fall over short or extended periods of time. Equity securities, including common stocks, may fall due to both changes in general economic conditions that impact the market as a whole, as well as factors that directly relate to a specific company or its industry. Such general economic conditions include changes in interest rates, periods of market turbulence or instability, or general and prolonged periods of economic decline and cyclical change. It is possible that a drop in the stock market may depress the price of most or all of the common stocks that the Fund holds. In addition, equity risk includes the risk that investor sentiment toward one or more industries will become negative, resulting in those investors exiting their investments in those industries, which could cause a reduction of the value of companies in those industries more broadly. The value of a company's common

stock may fall solely because of factors, such as an increase in production costs, that negatively impact other companies in the same region, industry or sector of the market. A company's common stock also may decline significantly in price over a short period of time due to factors specific to that company, including decisions made by its management or lower demand for the company's products or services. For example, an adverse event, such as an unfavorable earnings report or the failure to make anticipated dividend payments, may depress the value of common stock. Equity securities generally have greater volatility than debt securities.

Preferred Stock Risk — Unlike common stock, preferred stock generally pays a fixed dividend from a company's earnings and may have a preference over common stock on the distribution of a company's assets in the event of bankruptcy or liquidation. Preferred stockholders' liquidation rights are subordinate to the company's debt holders and creditors. If interest rates rise, the fixed dividend on preferred stocks may be less attractive and the price of preferred stocks may decline. Preferred stock usually does not require the issuer to pay dividends and may permit the issuer to defer dividend payments. Deferred dividend payments could have adverse tax consequences for the Fund and may cause the preferred stock to lose substantial value.

Warrants Risk — Warrants can provide a greater potential for profit or loss than an equivalent investment in the underlying security. Prices of warrants do not necessarily move in tandem with the prices of the underlying securities and therefore are highly volatile and speculative investments. They have no voting rights, pay no dividends and have no rights with respect to the assets of the issuer other than a purchase option. If a warrant held by the Fund is not exercised by the date of its expiration, the Fund would lose the entire purchase price of the warrant or right.

Convertible Security Risk — The Fund may be susceptible to convertible security risk. Convertible securities generally offer lower interest or dividend yields than non-convertible securities of similar quality. Convertible securities may gain or lose value due to changes in the issuer's operating results, financial condition, and credit rating and changes in interest rates and other general economic, industry and market conditions. Convertible securities generally have higher yields than common stocks of the same or similar issuers, but lower yields than comparable non-convertible securities. They may be less subject to fluctuation in value than the underlying stock

because they have fixed income characteristics, and provide the potential for capital appreciation if the market price of the underlying common stock increases.

Foreign Investment Risk — Foreign investments, which can be denominated in any applicable foreign currency, involve certain inherent risks that are different from those of domestic investments, including political or economic instability of the issuer or the country of issue, less government supervision and regulation of foreign securities exchanges, changes in foreign currency and exchange rates, less public information about foreign companies, greater price fluctuations, and the possibility of adverse changes in investment or exchange control regulations. Currency fluctuations may also affect the net asset value of the Fund irrespective of the performance of the underlying investments in foreign issuers (see *Currency Risk* below). Foreign governments can also levy confiscatory taxes, expropriate assets and limit repatriations of assets. These risks may be more pronounced with respect to investments in emerging markets, as described below. As a result of these and other factors, foreign securities may be subject to greater price fluctuation than securities of U.S. companies. American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs") are typically trust receipts issued by a U.S. bank or trust company that evidence an indirect interest in underlying securities issued by a foreign entity. Global Depositary Receipts ("GDRs"), European Depositary Receipts ("EDRs"), and other types of depositary receipts are typically issued by non-U.S. banks or financial institutions to evidence an interest in underlying securities issued by either a U.S. or a non-U.S. entity. Investments in non-U.S. issuers through ADRs, GDRs, EDRs, and other types of depositary receipts generally involve risks applicable to other types of investments in non-U.S. issuers. Investments in depositary receipts may be less liquid and more volatile than the underlying securities in their primary trading market. If a depositary receipt is denominated in a different currency than its underlying securities, the Fund will be subject to the currency risk of both the investment in the depositary receipt and the underlying security. The values of depositary receipts may decline for a number of reasons relating to the issuers or sponsors of the depositary receipts, including, but not limited to, insolvency of the issuer or sponsor. Holders of depositary receipts may have limited or no rights to take action with respect to the underlying securities or to compel the issuer of the receipts to take action. The prices of depositary receipts may differ from the prices of securities upon which they are based. The Fund may invest in unsponsored depositary receipts, which are issued by one or more depositaries without a formal agreement with the company that issues the underlying securities. Holders of unsponsored depositary receipts generally bear all the costs thereof, and the depositaries of unsponsored depositary receipts frequently are under no obligation to distribute shareholder communications received from the issuers of the underlying securities or to pass through voting rights with respect to the underlying securities. In addition, the issuers of

the securities underlying unsponsored depositary receipts are not obligated to disclose material information to the market and, therefore, there may be less information available regarding such issuers and there may not be a correlation between such information and the market value of the depositary receipts. Additionally, dividends and interest received by the Fund and capital gains recognized by the Fund may give rise to withholding and other taxes imposed by foreign countries and may decrease the Fund's return.

Geographic Investment Risk — To the extent the Fund invests a significant portion of its assets in the securities of companies of a single country or region, it is more likely to be impacted by events or conditions affecting that country or region. For example, political and economic conditions and changes in regulatory, tax, or economic policy in a country could significantly affect the market in that country and in surrounding or related countries and have a negative impact on the Fund's performance. Currency developments or restrictions, political and social instability, and changing economic conditions have resulted in significant market volatility. As of the date of this Prospectus, the Fund has significant exposure to Canada, Europe and Japan.

The Fund's exposure to a particular country is determined in accordance with the Adviser's "country of risk" assessment.

Canada Risk — Canada is a significant exporter of natural resources, such as oil, natural gas and agricultural products. As a result, the Canadian economy is susceptible to adverse changes in certain commodities markets. It is also heavily dependent on trading with key partners, including the United States, Mexico, and China. Any reduction in trading with these key partners may adversely affect the Canadian economy. Canada's dependency on the economy of the United States, in particular, makes Canada's economy vulnerable to political and regulatory changes affecting the United States economy. These and other factors could negatively affect the Fund's performance. Recent political developments in the United States have raised potential implications for the current trade arrangements between the United States and Canada, which could negatively affect the value of Canadian securities.

European Risk — The Fund's investments may subject it to the risks associated with investing in the European markets, including the risks associated with the United Kingdom's ("UK") exit from the European Union ("Brexit") and the war in Ukraine. Investments in a single region, even though representing a number of different countries within the region, may be affected by common economic forces and other factors. A number of countries in the European Union (the "EU") have experienced, and may continue to experience, severe economic and financial difficulties, increasing the risk of investing in the European markets. The UK formally withdrew from the EU, effective January 31, 2020. The actual or potential consequences of Brexit, and the associated uncertainty, could adversely affect economic and market conditions in the UK, in the EU and its member states and elsewhere, and could contribute to instability in global financial markets. The impact of such events on the Fund is difficult to predict but they may adversely affect the return on the Fund and its investments. There may be detrimental implications for the value of certain of the Fund's investments, its ability to enter into transactions or to value or realize such investments or otherwise to implement its investment program. It is possible that certain of the Fund's investments may need to be restructured to enable the Fund's objectives to be pursued fully. This may increase costs or make it more difficult for the Fund to pursue its investment objectives. To the extent the Fund has exposure to European markets or to transactions tied to the value of the euro, these events could negatively affect the value and liquidity of the Fund's investments. All of these developments may continue to significantly affect the economies of all EU countries, which in turn may have a material adverse effect on the Fund's investments in such countries, other countries that depend on EU countries for significant amounts of trade or investment, or issuers with exposure to debt issued by certain EU countries. Further, political or economic disruptions in European countries, even in countries in which the Fund is not invested, may adversely affect security values and thus the Fund's holdings. Recent political developments in the United States have raised potential implications for the current trade arrangements between the United States and Europe, which could negatively affect the value of European securities.

Japan Risk — The Japanese economy is heavily dependent upon international trade and may be subject to considerable degrees of economic, political and social instability. The Japanese yen has fluctuated widely during recent periods and may be affected by currency volatility elsewhere in Asia, especially Southeast Asia. In addition, the yen has had a history of unpredictable and volatile movements against the U.S. dollar. The performance of the global economy could have a major impact upon equity returns in Japan. Since the mid-2000s, Japan's economic growth has remained relatively low. A recent economic recession was likely compounded by an unstable financial sector, low domestic consumption, and certain corporate structural weaknesses, which remain some of the major issues facing the Japanese economy. Japan has also experienced natural disasters, such as earthquakes and tidal waves, of varying degrees of severity. These and other factors could negatively affect the Fund's performance. Recent political developments in the United States have raised potential implications for the current trade arrangements between the United

States and Japan, which could negatively affect the value of Japanese securities.

South Korea Risk — The South Korean economy is heavily reliant on trading exports and disruptions or decreases in trade activity could lead to further declines. Investments in South Korean issuers may subject the Fund to legal, regulatory, political, currency, security and economic risks that are specific to South Korea. Periods of political instability, including recent events, may negatively impact the South Korean economy. Economic and political developments of South Korea's neighbors, including escalated tensions involving North Korea and any outbreak of hostilities involving North Korea, or even the threat of an outbreak of such hostilities, may have a severe adverse effect on the South Korean economy.

Emerging Market Risk — To the extent the Fund invests in emerging market securities, the Fund may be exposed to market, credit, currency, liquidity, legal, political, technical and other risks different from, and generally greater than, the risks of investing in developed markets. Emerging market countries typically have less-established market economies than developed countries and may face greater social, economic, regulatory and political uncertainties. In addition, emerging markets typically present greater illiquidity and price volatility concerns due to smaller or limited local capital markets and greater difficulty in determining market valuations of securities due to limited public information on issuers. Risks related to emerging markets securities also include market manipulation concerns, limited reliable access to capital and foreign investment structures. Emerging markets also may be susceptible to the risks associated with the differences in regulatory, accounting, auditing, financial reporting and recordkeeping standards, which could impact the Fund's performance. There also may be limitations on the rights and remedies available to the Fund, individually or in combination with other shareholders, against issuers within emerging markets.

Currency Risk — Currency risk is the risk that foreign currencies will decline in value relative to that of the U.S. dollar and affect the Fund's non-U.S. currencies or securities that trade in and receive revenue in non-U.S. currencies. Currency exchange rates may fluctuate in response to, among other things, changes in interest rates, intervention (or failure to intervene) by U.S. or foreign governments, central banks or supranational entities, or by the imposition of currency controls or other political developments in the U.S. or abroad. In addition, foreign government exchange controls and restrictions on repatriation of currency can result in losses to the Fund if it is unable to deliver or receive currency or monies to settle obligations. Such governmental actions could also cause hedges the Fund has entered into to be rendered useless, resulting in the Fund having full currency exposure while incurring transaction costs.

Small and Medium-Size Company Risk — In addition to investments in larger companies, the Fund may invest in smaller and medium-size companies, which historically have been more volatile in price than larger company securities, especially over the short term. Positions in smaller companies, especially when the Fund is a large holder of a small company's securities, also may be more difficult or expensive to trade. Among the reasons for the greater price volatility are the less certain growth prospects of smaller companies, the lower degree of liquidity in the markets for such securities and the greater sensitivity of smaller companies to changing economic conditions. In addition, smaller companies may lack depth of management, they may be unable to generate funds necessary for growth or development, or they may be developing or marketing new products or services for which markets are not yet established and may never become established. The Fund considers small companies to be companies with market capitalizations of less than \$1 billion and medium-size companies to have market capitalizations of less than \$10 billion.

Large-Size Company Risk — The Fund may in invest in larger, more established companies, the securities of which may be unable to respond quickly to new competitive challenges like changes in consumer tastes or innovative smaller competitors. Larger companies are generally more mature than smaller companies. They also may have fewer new market opportunities for their products or services, may focus resources on maintaining their market share, and may be unable to respond quickly to new competitive challenges. As a result, the securities issued by these companies may not be able to reach the same levels of growth as the securities issued by small and medium-size companies, especially during extended periods of economic expansion. The Fund considers large companies to be companies with market capitalizations of \$10 billion or greater.

Credit and Interest Rate Risk — All debt obligations, such as bonds, are subject to credit risk and interest rate risk. The value of the Fund's portfolio may fluctuate in response to the risk that the issuer of a bond or other instrument will not be able to make payments of interest and principal when due. The value of the debt securities held by the Fund fluctuates with the credit quality of the issuers of those securities. The Fund could lose money if the issuer of a security is unable to meet its financial obligations or goes bankrupt. The Fund may invest in debt instruments that are below investment grade, commonly known as "high yield" or "junk" bonds, which are considered speculative, and carry a higher risk of default. In addition, fluctuations in interest rates can affect the value of debt instruments held by the Fund. A debt instrument's "duration" is a way of measuring a debt instrument's sensitivity to a potential change in interest rates. An increase in interest rates tends to reduce the market value of debt instruments, while a decline in interest rates tends to increase their values. Generally, debt instruments with long maturities

and low coupons have the longest durations. Longer-duration instruments tend to be more sensitive to interest rate changes than those with shorter durations. For example, if a debt instrument has a duration of five years and interest rates increase (decrease) by 1%, then the value of that debt instrument would be expected to decline (increase) by approximately 5%. The Fund may face a heightened level of interest rate risk in times of monetary policy change and/or uncertainty, such as when the Federal Reserve Board ends a quantitative easing program and/or raises rates. A rising interest rate environment increases certain risks, including the potential for periods of volatility, increased redemptions and extended durations (i.e., extension risk). A low interest rate environment may prevent the Fund from providing a positive vield. Recent market conditions and events, including increases in interest rates, may exacerbate the risk that borrowers will not be able to make payments of interest and principal when due. During periods of decreasing or prolonged low interest rates, financial markets in which the Fund invests could be negatively affected by, for example, increased volatility, reduced value and liquidity of the Fund's investments, and perceptions of broader economic decline. When interest rates fall, the Fund may also face prepayment risk, meaning that an obligor will pay certain obligations more quickly than originally expected, and the Fund may have to invest the proceeds in securities with lower yields. In addition, there is risk of significant future rate moves and related economic and market impacts.

The rapid development and fluidity of these or other events may affect the economies of many nations, individual issuers and the global markets, including liquidity and volatility, in ways that cannot necessarily be foreseen at the present time.

Credit spread risk is the risk that economic and market conditions or any actual or perceived credit deterioration may lead to an increase in the credit spreads (i.e., the difference in yield between two securities of similar maturity but different credit quality) and a decline in price of an issuer's securities.

Changes in Debt Rating — Investments can be subject to the risk of downgrade by a ratings agency. Ratings downgrades generally affect the value of the downgraded security and are likely to result in both decreased demand for the security and an investor expectation of a higher rate of return on the security.

Gold Risk — The Fund may invest in gold and gold-related issues, and may also invest in assets of other precious metalsrelated issues (e.g., silver). The Fund is therefore susceptible to specific political and economic risks affecting the price of gold and other precious metals (e.g., silver) including changes in U.S. and foreign regulatory policies, tax, currency or mining laws, increased environmental costs, international monetary and political policies, economic conditions within an individual country, trade imbalances, and trade or currency restrictions between countries. The price of gold, in turn, is likely to affect

the market prices of securities of companies mining or processing gold, and accordingly, the value of the Fund's investments in such securities may also be affected. Goldrelated investments as a group have not performed as well as the stock market in general during periods when the U.S. dollar is strong, inflation is low and general economic conditions are stable. In addition, returns on gold-related investments have traditionally been more volatile than investments in broader equity or debt markets. Other factors that may affect the prices of gold, precious metals and securities related to them include changes in industrial and commercial demand for gold and precious metals. Although the risks related to investing in gold and other precious metals (e.g., silver) directly (as the Fund is authorized to do) are similar to those of investing in precious metal finance and operating companies, as just described, there are additional considerations, including custody and transaction costs that may be higher than those involving securities. Moreover, holding such metals results in no income being derived from such holding, unlike certain securities which may pay dividends or make other current payments. Although the Fund has contractual protections with respect to the credit risk of its custodian, precious metals in physical form (even in a segregated account) involve the risk of delay in obtaining the assets in the case of bankruptcy or insolvency of the custodian. This could impair disposition of the assets under those circumstances. In addition, income derived from trading in gold and certain contracts and derivatives relating to gold may result in negative tax consequences. Finally, although not currently anticipated, if such metals in the future were held in a book account, it would involve risks of the credit of the party holding them.

Tax Risk — In order to qualify for the favorable U.S. federal income tax treatment generally afforded to regulated investment companies, the Fund must, among other things, derive at least 90% of its gross income each taxable year from sources generating qualifying income, which include dividends, interest, gain from the sale of stock or securities and other categories of investment income but generally does not include gain from the sale of physical gold or other precious metals. The Fund currently owns positions in physical gold that have appreciated in value. Because any gain from the Fund's sale of such physical gold is expected to be non-qualifying income, if the Fund were to recognize gain from the sale of any such physical gold, the Fund may need to sell other assets that generate qualifying income in order to satisfy the annual 90% qualifying income test in a particular taxable year. It is also possible that the Fund may generate more non-qualifying income than anticipated, might not be able to generate qualifying income in a particular taxable year at levels sufficient to meet the annual 90% qualifying test, or might not be able to determine the percentage of qualifying income it derives for a taxable year until after the end of the taxable year. Failure to qualify as a regulated investment company

could have significant negative tax consequences to the Fund and Variable Contract holders.

There can be no guarantee that the Fund will be able to fully mitigate these risks, but there are certain structures and strategies that could allow the Fund to transfer physical gold to one or more wholly owned subsidiaries (and then potentially sell the physical gold from such a subsidiary) without generating non-qualifying income. These structures and strategies could result in the Fund being subject to tax in respect of gains realized (federal, and applicable state and local tax), which would reduce the returns that otherwise might be earned, and/or could result in such prospective tax liability being treated as a current liability, which would be deducted from the Fund's net asset value.

Derivatives Risk — Futures contracts or other "derivatives," including hedging strategies, present risks related to their significant price volatility and risk of default by the counterparty to the contract. Derivatives are subject to counterparty risk, which is the risk that a loss may be sustained by the Fund as a result of the insolvency or bankruptcy of the other party to the transaction or the failure of the other party to make required payments or otherwise comply with the terms of the transaction. Changing conditions in a particular market area, such as those experienced in the subprime and non-agency mortgage market over recent years, whether or not directly related to the referenced assets that underlie the transaction, may have an adverse impact on the creditworthiness of the counterparty. If the Fund invests in derivatives at inopportune times or judges market conditions incorrectly, such investments may lower the Fund's return or result in a loss, which could also lead to an increase in redemptions of Fund shares. The Fund also could experience losses if its derivatives were poorly correlated with its other investments, or if the Fund was unable to liquidate its position because of an illiquid secondary market. The market for some derivatives is, or suddenly can become, illiquid, especially in times of financial stress. Changes in liquidity may result in significant, rapid and unpredictable changes in the prices for derivatives. New rules governing derivatives could limit the Fund's use of derivatives in support of its investment strategy. Once implemented, these new rules may make derivatives more costly, or may otherwise adversely affect the Fund's liquidity, value or performance. The price volatility of futures contracts has been historically greater than that of traditional securities such as stocks and bonds. The value of certain futures contracts may fluctuate in response to changes in interest rates, currency exchange rates, commodity prices or other changes. Therefore, the assets of the Fund, and the prices of Fund shares, may be subject to greater volatility. The risks associated with the Fund's use of futures contracts include: (i) market conditions that may not always create a liquid secondary market for a futures contract and, as a result, the Fund may be unable to close out its futures contracts at a time which is advantageous; (ii) the risk that

losses caused by sudden, unanticipated market movements may be potentially unlimited; (iii) changes in the price of a futures contract may not always track the changes in market value of the underlying reference asset; (iv) trading restrictions or limitations may be imposed by an exchange, and government regulations may restrict trading in futures contracts; and (v) if the Fund has insufficient cash to meet margin requirements, the Fund may need to sell other investments, including at disadvantageous times.

Value Investment Strategy Risk — An investment strategy that employs a "value" approach may pose a risk to the Fund that such investment strategy may not be successfully achieved. An investment made at a perceived "margin of safety" or "discount to intrinsic or fundamental value" can trade at prices substantially lower than when an investment is made, so that any perceived "margin of safety" or "discount to value" is no guarantee against loss. "Value" investments, as a category, or entire industries or sectors associated with such investments, may lose favor with investors as compared to those that are more "growth" oriented. In such an event, the Fund's investment returns would be expected to lag relative to returns associated with more growth-oriented investment strategies. Investing in or having exposure to "value" securities presents the risk that such securities may never reach what the Adviser believes are their full market values, either because the market fails to recognize what the Adviser considers to be the security's true value or because the Adviser misjudged that value.

Cybersecurity Risk — The occurrence of a disaster such as a cyber-attack, a natural catastrophe, an industrial accident, a terrorist attack or war, events unanticipated in the disaster recovery systems of the Fund and the Adviser, or a support failure from external providers, could have an adverse effect on the Fund's ability to conduct business and on its results of operations and financial condition, particularly if those events affect the Fund and/or the Adviser's computer-based data processing, transmission, storage, and retrieval systems or destroy data. If the Adviser was unavailable in the event of a disaster, the Fund's ability to effectively conduct its business could be severely compromised. The Fund and the Adviser depend heavily upon computer systems to perform necessary business functions. Despite implementation of a variety of security measures, the computer systems of the Fund and/or Adviser could be subject to cyber-attacks and unauthorized access, such as physical and electronic break-ins, "phishing" attempts or unauthorized tampering. Like other companies, the Fund and the Adviser may experience threats to their data and systems, including malware and computer virus attacks, impersonation of authorized users, unauthorized access, system failures and disruptions. The Fund does not control the cyber security plans and systems put in place by third-party service providers, and such third-party service providers may have limited indemnification obligations to the Fund, the Adviser, shareholders and/or an issuer, each of which would

be negatively impacted. If one or more of these events occurs, it could potentially jeopardize the confidential, proprietary and other information processed and stored in, and transmitted through, the computer systems and networks of the Fund or the Adviser, or otherwise cause interruptions or malfunctions in the Fund's operations, which could result in damage to the Fund's reputation, financial losses, litigation, increased costs, regulatory penalties and/or customer dissatisfaction or loss.

Subsidiary Risk — If the Fund invests in one or more Subsidiaries, the Fund will be indirectly exposed to the risks associated with the Subsidiary's investments. Any Subsidiary will not be registered under the 1940 Act and will not be subject to all of the investor protections of the 1940 Act. Changes in the laws governing the operation of a Subsidiary could result in the inability of the Fund and/or any Subsidiary to operate as expected and could adversely affect the Fund.

Defensive Investment Strategies

The Fund has the flexibility to respond promptly to changes in market and economic conditions. For example, a defensive strategy may be warranted during periods of unfavorable market or economic conditions, including periods of market turbulence or periods when prevailing market valuations are higher than those deemed attractive under the investment criteria generally applied on behalf of the Fund. Under a defensive strategy, the Fund may hold cash and/or invest up to 100% of its assets in high quality debt instruments or money market instruments of U.S. or foreign issuers. In such a case, the Fund may not be able to pursue, and may not achieve, its investment objective. It is impossible to predict whether, when or for how long the Fund will employ defensive strategies.

Disclosure of Portfolio Holdings

A description of the Fund's policies and procedures with respect to disclosure of its portfolio securities is available in the Fund's Statement of Additional Information, which is available on request (see back cover).

Fund Index

The Average Annual Total Returns table earlier in this Prospectus illustrates how the Fund's average annual returns for different calendar periods compare to the returns of the MSCI EAFE Index. The MSCI EAFE Index is an unmanaged total return index, reported in U.S. dollars, based on share prices and reinvested net dividends of companies from 21 developed market countries, excluding the United States and Canada. One cannot invest directly in an index.

Fund Management

The Adviser

The Adviser of the Fund is First Eagle Investment Management, LLC, a subsidiary of First Eagle Holdings, Inc. ("FE Holdings"). Based in New York City since 1937, FE Holdings, formerly Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder Holdings, Inc., traces its heritage to the German banking house Gebr. Arnhold, founded in Dresden in 1864. A controlling interest in FE Holdings is owned by BCP CC Holdings L.P., a Delaware limited partnership ("BCP CC Holdings"). BCP CC Holdings GP L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company ("BCP CC Holdings GP"), is the general partner of BCP CC Holdings and has two managing members, Blackstone Capital Partners VI L.P. ("BCP VI") and Corsair IV Financial Services Capital Partners L.P. ("Corsair IV"). BCP VI and Corsair IV are indirectly controlled by Blackstone Inc. ("Blackstone") and Corsair Capital LLC ("Corsair"). Investment vehicles indirectly controlled by Blackstone and Corsair and certain co-investors own a majority economic interest in FE Holdings and the Adviser through BCP CC Holdings. The Adviser offers a variety of investment management services. In addition to the Fund, its clients include the First Eagle Funds, First Eagle Credit Opportunities Fund, First Eagle Private Credit Fund, other pooled vehicles, corporations and major retirement plans. As of December 31, 2024, the Adviser had over \$99.4 billion under management. The Adviser's address is 1345 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10105.

Matthew McLennan, Kimball Brooker, Jr., Christian Heck and Alan Barr manage the Fund. The professional backgrounds of Messrs. McLennan, Brooker, Heck and Barr follow.

Matthew McLennan is Co-Head of the First Eagle Global Value Team. Mr. McLennan joined the Adviser in September 2008 after having held various senior positions with Goldman Sachs Asset Management in London and New York. While at his predecessor firm for over fourteen years, Mr. McLennan was Chief Investment Officer of a London-based investment team from 2003 to 2008 where he was responsible for managing a focused value-oriented global equity product and held positions from 1994 to 2003 that included portfolio management and investment analyst responsibilities for smallcap and mid-cap value equity portfolios.

Kimball Brooker, Jr. is Co-Head of the First Eagle Global Value Team. Mr. Brooker has managed the Fund with Mr. McLennan since April 2011. Mr. Brooker joined the Adviser in January 2009. For the three years prior to that, Mr. Brooker was Chief Investment Officer of Corsair Capital.

Christian Heck has managed the Fund since May 2021. Mr. Heck joined the Adviser in 2013. Mr. Heck is a Portfolio Manager of the First Eagle International Value strategy and is also an associate director of research of First Eagle's Global Value Team. Prior to that, Mr. Heck was a research analyst at Paradigm Capital.

Alan Barr has managed the Fund since May 2021. Mr. Barr joined the Adviser as a research analyst in March 2001. Previously, he spent four years as an equity research analyst at PNC Bank and, before then, seven years as an equity research analyst at Rittenhouse Financial Services.

Additional information regarding these portfolio managers' compensation, other accounts managed by them and their ownership of securities in the Fund is available in the Statement of Additional Information. The portfolio managers are supported in their duties by a team of investment professionals employed by the Adviser, and certain background information regarding these investment professionals is also available in the Statement of Additional Information.

Pursuant to an advisory agreement with the Trust, the Adviser is responsible for the management of the Fund's portfolio. In return for its investment management services, the Fund pays the Adviser a fee at the annual rate of the average daily value of the Fund's net assets as follows:

Management Fee

First Eagle Overseas Variable Fund

0.75%*

* The Adviser has contractually agreed to waive and/or reimburse certain fees and expenses so that the total annual operating expenses (excluding interest, taxes, brokerage commissions, acquired fund fees and expenses, dividend and interest expenses relating to short sales, and extraordinary expenses, if any) ("annual operating expenses") are limited to 1.21% of average net assets. This undertaking lasts until April 29, 2026 and may not be terminated during its term without the consent of the Board of Trustees. The Fund has agreed that it will repay the Adviser for fees and expenses waived or reimbursed provided that repayment does not cause annual operating expenses (after the repayment is taken into account) to exceed the lesser of: (1) 1.21% the Fund's average net assets; or (2) if applicable, the then-current expense limitation. Any such repayment must be made within three years after the year in which the Adviser incurred the expense.

The Adviser also performs certain administrative, accounting, operations, compliance and other services on behalf of the Fund, and in accordance with its agreement with the Fund, the Fund reimburses the Adviser for costs (including personnel, related overhead and other costs) related to those services. These reimbursements may not exceed an annual rate of 0.05% of the value of the Fund's average daily net assets, and they comprise a portion, and sometimes a substantial portion, of the Fund's "Other Expenses" in the fees and expenses table of this Prospectus.

The expense ratio is subject to change in response to changes in the Fund's average net assets or for other reasons. A decline in average net assets can be expected to increase the impact of operating expenses.

Approval of Advisory Agreement

A discussion regarding the basis of the Fund's Board of Trustees' ("Board of Trustees") approval of the Advisory Agreement between the Fund and the Adviser is available in the Financial Statements filed with the SEC on Form N-CSR for financial reporting periods in which the Advisory Agreement was acted upon by the Board of Trustees.

About Your Investment

Investing requires a plan. Whether you invest on your own or use the services of a financial professional, you should create a strategy designed to meet your short-and long-term financial goals.

How to Purchase Shares

Shares of the Fund are offered for purchase by separate accounts of insurance companies for the purpose of serving as an investment medium for Variable Contracts. Shares of the Fund are sold at their net asset value (without a sales charge) next computed after a receipt of a purchase order by an insurance company whose separate account invests in the Fund. These insurance companies also may impose certain handling charges in connection with transactions in Fund shares and may have particular requirements relating to processing transactions. For information on how to purchase shares (and details relating to any such handling charges or other processing requirements), please refer to the Prospectus of the participating insurance company.

Shares of the Fund are sold to insurance company separate accounts funding Variable Contracts and may be sold to insurance companies that are not affiliated. The Trust currently does not foresee any disadvantages to Variable Contract owners arising from offering the Fund's shares to separate accounts of unaffiliated insurers, or separate accounts funding Variable Contracts. However, due to differences in tax treatment or other considerations, it is theoretically possible that the interests of owners of various Variable Contracts participating in the Fund might at some time be in conflict. The Board of Trustees and insurance companies whose separate accounts invest in the Fund are required to monitor events in order to identify any material conflicts between Variable Contract owners, and between separate accounts of unaffiliated insurers. The Board of Trustees will determine what action, if any, should be taken in the event of such a conflict. If such a conflict were to occur, one or more insurance company separate accounts might withdraw their investment in the Fund. This could force the Fund to sell securities at disadvantageous prices.

The Trust and FEF Distributors, LLC ("FEF Distributors" or the "Distributor"), the Fund's principal underwriter (and a subsidiary of the Adviser), each reserve the right to refuse any order for purchase of shares and to cancel any purchase for any reason it deems appropriate. Any such cancellation, other than for nonpayment or to correct certain administrative errors, will be effected within two business days of when the insurance company receives the purchase order as the Fund's agent.

Anti-Money Laundering Compliance

The Trust, the Distributor and the insurance companies issuing the Variable Contracts are required to comply with various anti-money laundering laws and regulations. Consequently, additional information regarding your identity and source of funds may be required of you. If the information submitted does not provide for adequate identity verification, you may not be able to establish an account with your insurance company or that account may be closed at the then-current net asset value. Similarly, suspicious account activity or account information matching that on government lists of suspicious persons may prevent establishment of an account or may require "freezing" an account, reporting to governmental agencies or other financial institutions or the transfer of account assets to governmental agencies. In some circumstances, the law may not permit notification to the affected account holder of these actions.

How Fund Share Prices Are Calculated

The Fund computes its net asset value once daily as of the close of trading on each day the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") is open for trading. Net asset value for purchase or sale orders which are received by the Fund on any business day before the close of regular trading on the NYSE will be calculated as of that same day. If the purchase or sale request is received on a business day after the close of regular trading on the NYSE, or on a non-business day (weekend or financial market holiday), net asset value will be calculated as of the close of regular trading on the next business day. The net asset value per share is computed by dividing the total current value of the assets of the Fund, less its total liabilities, by the total number of shares outstanding at the time of such computation. Because the Fund may invest in securities listed on foreign exchanges that may trade on weekends or other days when the Fund does not price its shares, the Fund's share value may change on days when shareholders will not be able to purchase or redeem shares.

The Fund uses pricing services to identify the market prices of publicly traded securities in its portfolio. When market prices are determined to be "stale" as a result of limited market activity for a particular holding, or in other circumstances when market prices are unavailable, such as for private placements, or when market prices have been materially affected by events occurring after the close of trading on the exchange or market on which the security is principally traded but before the Fund's net asset value is calculated, or determined to be unreliable for a particular holding, such holdings may be "fair valued" in accordance with procedures approved by the Board of Trustees. Additionally, trading foreign equity securities on most foreign markets is completed before the close of trading in U.S. markets. The Fund has implemented fair value pricing on a daily basis for all foreign securities, as available, to account for the market movement between the close of the foreign market and the close of the NYSE. The fair value pricing utilizes factors provided by an independent pricing service. The values assigned to the Fund's foreign holdings therefore may differ on occasion from reported market values. The Board of Trustees and the Adviser believe relying on the procedures as just described will result in prices that are more reflective of the actual market value of portfolio securities held by the Fund than relying solely on reported market values.

The Distributor may authorize certain intermediaries to receive on its behalf purchase and redemption orders. In turn, these parties may designate other intermediaries to receive purchase and redemption orders on the Distributor's behalf. Orders for shares received by the Fund's transfer agent, SS&C GIDS, Inc. ("SS&C" or the "Transfer Agent") or any of these authorized or designated intermediaries prior to the close of trading on the NYSE will be processed based on that day's net asset value determined as of the close of trading on the NYSE that day. If an order is received by SS&C or an authorized or designated intermediary after the close of the NYSE, it will be priced the next day the NYSE is open for trading.

Distribution and/or Shareholder Services Expenses

The Fund's shares are offered, in states and countries in which such offer is lawful, to investors either through insurance companies or other financial intermediaries.

To help support the costs of selling the Fund's shares and ongoing services to shareholder accounts, the Fund has adopted a Distribution Plan and Agreement (the "Plan") under Rule 12b-1 of the 1940 Act. Under the Plan, the Fund will pay the Distributor a monthly distribution-related fee at an annual rate of 0.25% of the average daily value of the Fund's net assets.

Because these fees are paid from the Fund's assets on an ongoing basis, over time these fees will increase the cost of an investment in the Fund and ultimately may cost more than paying other types of sales charges. Any distribution-related (Rule 12b-1) fee may be used in whole or in part to finance distribution activities, including sales compensation, and/or shareholder account liaison and servicing activities.

Under the Plan, the Fund is authorized to make payments to the Distributor for payment to an insurance company that is the issuer of a Variable Contract invested in shares of the Fund in order to pay or reimburse such insurance company for distribution and shareholder servicing-related expenses incurred or paid by such insurance company. The Distributor or its affiliates take on distribution expenses to the extent that they are not covered by payments under the Plan. Any distribution expenses incurred by the Distributor or its affiliates in any fiscal year of the Fund that are not reimbursed from payments accumulated during such fiscal year will not be carried over for payment in any subsequent year.

The Plan may be terminated without a penalty payment by the vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Fund.

Insurance companies perform services for the Fund that otherwise could be handled by SS&C. These services may include preparing and distributing client statements, tax reporting, order-processing and client relations. As a result, these insurance companies may charge fees (sometimes called "sub-transfer agency fees" or "sub-accounting fees") to the Fund for these services. The Fund may pay for such services outside of a Rule 12b-1 Plan (meaning in addition to or instead of as Rule 12b-1 fees) so long as such compensation does not exceed certain limits set from time to time by the Board of Trustees in consultation with management. Arrangements may involve a dollar per-account fee, an asset-based fee, transaction or other charges, cost reimbursement, or, in some cases, a combination of these inputs.

Sub-transfer agency fees can comprise a substantial portion of the Fund's ongoing expenses. While the Adviser and the Distributor consider sub-transfer agency fees to be payments for services rendered, they represent an additional business relationship between these insurance companies and the Fund that often results, at least in part, from past or present sales of Fund shares by the insurance companies or their affiliates. The Distributor, the Adviser or an affiliate may make additional payments to insurance companies for these and other services, and their payments may be based on the same or other methods of calculation. See *Revenue Sharing* below.

Revenue Sharing

The Distributor, Adviser or an affiliate may make cash payments from its (or their) own resources to insurance companies or their representatives for various reasons. These payments, often referred to as "revenue sharing," may support the delivery of services to the Fund or to shareholders in the Fund, including transaction processing and sub-accounting services.

These payments also may serve as an incentive to sell Fund shares or to promote shareholder retention. As such, the payments may go to firms providing various marketing support or other promotional services relating to the Fund, including advertising and sales meetings, as well as inclusion of the Fund in various promotional and sales programs. Marketing support services also may include business planning assistance, educating insurance company personnel about the Fund and shareholder financial planning assistance.

Revenue sharing payments may include any portion of the subtransfer agency fees (described in the preceding section) that exceed the limits for those fees established by the Board of Trustees in consultation with management and which, accordingly, the Fund does not pay. They also may include any other payment requirement of an insurance company or another third-party intermediary. All such payments are paid by the Distributor, the Adviser or an affiliate of either out of its (or their) own resources. Such payments are in addition to any sub-transfer agency fees and Rule 12b-1 payments described elsewhere in this Prospectus. Revenue sharing payments may be structured, among other means, as: (i) a percentage of sales; (ii) a percentage of net assets; (iii) a flat fee per transaction; (iv) a fixed dollar amount; or (v) some combination of any of these. In many cases, revenue sharing arrangements may be viewed as encouraging sales activity or retention of assets in the Fund. Generally, any revenue sharing or similar payments are requested by the party receiving them, often as a condition of distribution, but are subject to negotiation as to their structure and scope.

The Distributor, Adviser or an affiliate also may pay from its (or their) own resources for travel and other expenses, including lodging, entertainment and meals, incurred by insurance companies or their representatives related to diligence or for attending informational meetings in which insurance company representatives meet with the Fund's investment professionals. The Distributor, Adviser or an affiliate also may pay for costs of organizing and holding such meetings and also may make payments to or on behalf of insurance companies or their representatives for other types of events, including pre-approved conferences, seminars or training programs (and payments for travel, lodging, etc.), and may provide certain small gifts and/or entertainment as permitted by applicable rules. The Distributor, the Adviser or an affiliate also may pay fixed fees for the listing of the Fund on an insurance company's or its representatives' system. This compensation is not included in, and is made in addition to, the compensation described in the preceding paragraph.

A shareholder or prospective Variable Contract investor should be aware that revenue sharing arrangements or other payments to intermediaries could create incentives on the part of the parties receiving the payments to more positively consider the Fund relative to mutual funds either not making payments of this nature or making smaller such payments. A shareholder or prospective Variable Contract investor with questions regarding revenue sharing or other such payments may obtain more details by contacting his or her financial intermediary directly. The Fund's Statement of Additional Information includes more details on the revenue sharing payments in respect of the Fund.

Short-Term Trading Policies

The Fund is not a vehicle for frequent traders. Frequent trading (including exchanging) of Fund shares, also known as "market timing," may increase Fund transaction and administration costs and otherwise negatively affect the Fund's investment program, possibly diluting the Fund's value to its longer-term investors. For example, short-term investments moving in and out of the Fund may (i) prompt otherwise unnecessary purchases and sales of portfolio securities, thus increasing brokerage costs; (ii) affect the level of cash held by the Fund over time; (iii) affect taxable gains and losses realized by the Fund; or (iv) distract a portfolio manager from the Fund's longer-term investment strategy. While no minimum holding period has been set, the Fund monitors shareholder trading patterns to seek to identify inappropriate short-term trading.

The Fund also may deem individual contract holders to be potential short-term traders (and subject to trading suspensions or account closures without advance notice) based on information unrelated to the specific trades in an investor's account. For example, the Fund may obtain information linking an account to an account previously suspended or closed for inappropriate trading. In addition, a reliable third party may report short-term trading concerns regarding a particular account to the Fund. The Fund cannot guarantee to identify or prevent every instance of inappropriate trading. Nonetheless, pursuant to procedures overseen by the Board of Trustees, the Fund's guiding principle is trading deemed not in the interests of longer-term Fund shareholders will be actively deterred and, when possible, prevented.

The Fund depends on cooperation from the insurance company sponsors of the Variable Contracts in reviewing individual contract holder trading activity, which limits the Fund's ability to monitor and discourage such trading at that level. If the Fund is unable to identify and prevent inappropriate trading (either on its own or in cooperation with the insurance company sponsors), the adverse effects described above will be more likely to occur. The Fund does not have any arrangements intended to permit trading in contravention of the policies described in this paragraph and applies these policies uniformly as to any instances of identified inappropriate trading. The Fund may modify the short-term trading policies at any time.

Information Regarding State Escheatment Laws

Mutual fund accounts can be considered abandoned property. States increasingly are looking at inactive mutual fund accounts as possible abandoned or unclaimed property. Under certain circumstances, the Fund may be legally obligated to escheat (or transfer) an investor's account to the appropriate state's unclaimed property administrator. The Fund will not be liable to investors or their representatives for good faith compliance with state unclaimed or abandoned property (escheatment) laws. If you invest in the Fund through an insurance company or other financial intermediary (such as a bank), we encourage you to contact the insurance company or financial intermediary regarding applicable state escheatment laws. Escheatment laws vary by state, and states have different criteria for defining inactivity and abandoned property. Generally, a mutual fund account may be subject to Overseas "escheatment" (i.e., considered to be abandoned or unclaimed property) if the account owner has not initiated any activity in the account or contacted the fund for an "inactivity period" as specified in applicable state laws. If the Fund is unable to establish contact with an investor, the Fund will determine whether the investor's account must legally be considered abandoned and whether the assets in the account must be transferred to the appropriate state's unclaimed property administrator. Typically an investor's last known address of record determines the state that has jurisdiction.

Information on Dividends, Distributions and Taxes

It is the policy of the Fund to make yearly distributions of net investment income and net realized capital gains, if any. Unless a shareholder elects otherwise, such distributions will be reinvested in additional shares of the Fund at net asset value per share calculated as of the payment date. The Fund makes distributions on a per-share basis. As a result, on the exdividend date of such a payment, the net asset value per share of the Fund will be reduced by the amount of such payment.

The Fund intends to qualify and has elected to be treated as a "regulated investment company" under Subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). To qualify, the Fund must meet certain income, diversification and distribution requirements. As a regulated investment company, the Fund generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income or excise taxes on ordinary income and capital gains distributed to shareholders within applicable time limits, although foreign-source income received by the Fund may be subject to foreign withholding taxes.

Distributions made by the Fund to a separate account of an insurance company (generally referred to as "segregated asset accounts" for U.S. federal income tax purposes), and exchanges and redemptions of Fund shares made by such separate account, ordinarily do not cause the corresponding Variable Contract holder to recognize income or gain for U.S. federal income tax purposes, subject to the conditions described below. For a discussion of the tax consequences of Variable Contracts, please refer to the Prospectus offered by the participating insurance company. For the Variable Contract holders to be eligible for such U.S. federal income tax deferral, each segregated asset account supporting the Variable Contract must comply with certain asset diversification requirements and investor control prohibitions.

Diversification Requirements

Specifically, each segregated asset account is required to comply with the diversification requirements of Section 817(h) of the Code and the regulations thereunder relating to the taxdeferred status of segregated asset accounts. If a segregated asset account fails these requirements, (i) the Variable Contract would not be treated as an annuity or life insurance contract under the Code and (ii) the holders of such Variable Contract would be required to include as ordinary income the "income on the contract" for each taxable year. Generally, the "income on the contract" is the excess of (i) the sum of the increase in the net surrender value of the Variable Contract during the taxable year and the cost of the life insurance protection provided under the Variable Contract during the year, over (ii) the premiums paid under the Variable Contract during the taxable year. Variable Contract holders could also be taxable in future years even if the segregated asset account subsequently complied with the diversification tests.

To satisfy these diversification requirements, as of the end of each calendar quarter or within 30 days thereafter, each segregated asset account must meet one of two tests. Either (i) the segregated asset account must have no more than 55% of its total assets represented by any one investment, no more than 70% of its total assets represented by any two investments, no more than 80% of its total assets represented by any three investments, and no more than 90% of its total assets represented by any four investments or (ii) the segregated asset account must both (a) meet all the diversification requirements under Section 851(b)(3) of the Code (which are applicable to all regulated investment companies) and (b) have no more than 55% of its total assets attributable to cash, cash items (including receivables), Government securities or securities of other regulated investment companies. For purposes of the first test, all securities of the same issuer are considered a single investment, but in the case of Government securities, each Government agency or instrumentality is considered to be a separate issuer. An alternative test to establish diversification may be available under certain circumstances.

Section 817(h) of the Code provides a look-through rule for purposes of testing the diversification of a segregated asset account that invests in a regulated investment company such as the Fund. If the look-through rule applies, a beneficial interest in a regulated investment company will not be treated as a single investment of a segregated asset account for purposes of the diversification requirements described above; instead, a *pro rata* portion of each asset of the regulated investment company will be treated as an asset of the segregated asset account.

Investor Control Prohibitions

For a Variable Contract to qualify for U.S. federal income tax deferral, it must avoid the prohibition on investor control so that assets in a segregated asset account supporting the Variable Contract are considered to be owned for U.S. federal income tax purposes by the insurance company and not by the Variable Contract holder. Accordingly, a Variable Contract holder should not have an impermissible level of control over a segregated asset account's or the Fund's investment in any particular asset. If the Variable Contract holder were considered the owner of the Fund shares for U.S. federal income tax purposes, income and gain earned from such Fund shares for the current, future and prior taxable years would be taxable currently to the Variable Contract holders.

The Fund intends (1) to comply with the requirements necessary to allow a segregated asset account to lookthrough the Fund to the Fund's investments for purposes of satisfying the asset diversification requirements of Section 817(h) of the Code, (2) to comply with such asset diversification requirements to prevent the Variable Contract holders from losing their special tax treatment because of investments in the Fund, and (3) to comply with the requirements necessary to prevent the Variable Contract holders from having an impermissible level of control over the Fund's assets.

Tax Treatment to Insurance Companies

Dividends paid by the Fund and gains from the sale or exchange of Fund shares are includable in the respective insurance company's gross income. The tax treatment of these dividends and gains depends on the insurance company's tax status. A description of an insurance company's tax status may be contained in the prospectus for the Variable Contract.

Tax issues can be complicated. Please consult your tax adviser about federal, state, or local tax consequences or with any other tax questions you may have.

Contractual Arrangements

The Fund is party to contractual arrangements with various parties who provide services to the Fund, including the Adviser, the Distributor, the custodian, and the Transfer Agent, among others. Fund shareholders are not parties to, or intended ("third party") beneficiaries of, any such contractual arrangements, and such contractual arrangements are not intended to create in any individual investor or group of investors any right to enforce them against the service providers or to seek any remedy under them against the service providers, either directly or on behalf of the Fund.

Also, while this Prospectus and the Statement of Additional Information describe pertinent information about the Trust and the Fund, neither this Prospectus nor the Statement of Additional Information represents a contract between the Trust or the Fund and any shareholder or any other party.

Derivative Actions Brought on Behalf of the Trust

General

In addition to the requirements set forth under Delaware law, a shareholder may bring a derivative action on behalf of the Trust only if the following conditions are met: (a) the shareholder or shareholders must make a pre-suit demand upon the Trustees to bring the subject action unless an effort to cause the Trustees to bring such an action is not likely to succeed. For purposes of this requirement, a demand on the Trustees shall only be deemed not likely to succeed and therefore excused if a majority of the Board of Trustees, or a majority of any committee established to consider the merits of such action, has a personal financial interest in the transaction at issue, and a Trustee shall not be deemed interested in a transaction or otherwise disgualified from ruling on the merits of a shareholder demand by virtue of the fact that such Trustee receives remuneration for his service on the Board of Trustees of the Trust or on the boards of one or more trusts that are under common management with or otherwise affiliated with the Trust; (b) unless a demand is not required under paragraph (a), shareholders eligible to bring such derivative action under Delaware law who hold at least 10% of the outstanding shares of the Trust, or 10% of the outstanding shares of the series or class to which such action relates, shall join in the request for the Trustees to commence such action; and (c) unless a demand is not required under paragraph (a), the Trustees must be afforded a reasonable amount of time to consider such shareholder request and to investigate the basis of such claim. The Trustees shall be entitled to retain counsel or other advisors in considering the merits of the request and shall require an undertaking by the shareholders making such request to reimburse the Trust for the expense of any such advisors in the event that the Trustees determine not to bring such action. The Board of Trustees may designate a committee of one Trustee to consider a shareholder demand if necessary to create a committee with a majority of Trustees who do not have a personal financial interest in the transaction at issue.

The provision requiring at least 10% of the outstanding voting securities of the Trust, applicable series or class to join in the request to bring the derivative action and the provision requiring an undertaking by the requesting shareholders to reimburse the Trust for the expense of any advisors retained by the Board of Trustees in the event that the Trustees determine not to bring such action, does not apply to claims brought under federal securities laws.

Forum and Applicable Law

The Trust's Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust (the "Declaration of Trust") also places limitations on the forum in which claims against the Trust may be heard. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, unless the Trust consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the sole and exclusive forum for any shareholder (including a beneficial owner) to bring (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the Trust, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any Trustee, officer or employee, if any, of the Trust to the Trust or the Trust's shareholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim against the Trust, its Trustees, officers or employees, if any, arising pursuant to any provision of laws of the State of Delaware or the Declaration of Trust or the Trust's Amended and Restated Bylaws, or (iv) to the maximum extent permitted by law, any other proceeding arising out of or relating to the Trust or the shareholder's interest in the Trust, shall be the courts located in the State of Delaware, and in all cases subject to the Delaware courts' having personal jurisdiction over the indispensable parties named as defendants. Any person purchasing or otherwise acquiring or holding any interest in shares of the Trust shall be (i) deemed to have notice of and consented to these provisions, and (ii) deemed to have waived any argument relating to the inconvenience of the forums referenced above in connection with any action or proceeding.

Accordingly, shareholders may have to bring suit in what they may consider to be an inconvenient and potentially less favorable forum. The limitations described above relating to derivative actions and choice of forum do not apply to claims asserted under the federal securities laws, to the extent that any such federal laws, rules or regulations do not permit such application.

The Declaration of Trust empowers the Trustees of the Trust with, among other things: (i) full power and authority to do any and all acts and to make and execute any and all contracts

and instruments that they may consider necessary or appropriate in connection with the management of the Trust; and (ii) subject to the 1940 Act, the power to engage in any other lawful act or activity in which a statutory trust organized under the Delaware Act may engage. Notwithstanding that the Declaration of Trust is to be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, the Declaration of Trust explicitly excludes the application of certain laws that might otherwise apply, including any provisions of laws (common or statutory) of the State of Delaware pertaining to trusts that relate to or regulate establishment of fiduciary or other standards or responsibilities or limitations on the acts or powers of trustees that are inconsistent with the limitations or liabilities or authorities and powers of the Trustees set forth or referenced in the Declaration of Trust. Nothing in the Declaration of Trust modifying, restricting or eliminating the duties or liabilities of Trustees shall apply to, or in any way limit, the duties (including state law fiduciary duties of loyalty and care) or liabilities of such persons with respect to matters arising under the federal securities laws when and to the extent such terms are deemed inconsistent with the federal securities laws.

First Eagle Overseas Variable Fund

Financial Highlights

The Financial Highlights Table is intended to help you understand the Fund's financial performance for the past five fiscal years. Certain information reflects financial results for a single Fund share. The total returns in the table represent the rate an investor would have earned (or lost) on an investment in the Fund (assuming reinvestment of all dividends and distributions).

The Financial Highlights Table was derived from the Fund's financial statements, which were audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 300 Madison Avenue, New York,

New York 10017-6204. The report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the Fund's fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, together with the Fund's financial statements, are contained in the Fund's Financial Statements for that period, as filed with the SEC on Form N-CSR, and are incorporated by reference in the Statement of Additional Information. Financial Statements and the Statement of Additional Information are available upon request.

Selected data for a share of beneficial interest outstanding throughout each year is presented below:

Selected per share data for the year ended:		Per share operating performance*						
			Investment operation			Less dividends and distributions		
	Net asset value, beginning of year	Net investment income	Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments	Total investment operations	From net investment income	From capital gains	Total distributions	
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020	\$22.60 \$22.21 \$26.38 \$25.58 \$25.75	0.34 0.30 0.26 0.20 0.18	1.07 1.88 (2.39) 0.93 1.55	1.41 2.18 (2.13) 1.13 1.73	(0.43) — (0.52) (0.25) (0.69)	(0.17) (1.79) (1.52) (0.08) (1.21)	(0.60) (1.79) (2.04) (0.33) (1.90)	

Selected per share data for the year ended:				Ratio/Supplemental data				
				Ra	atios to Avera	ge Net Assets	of:	
	Net asset value, end of period	Total Return(a)	Net assets, end of period (thousands)	Operating expenses excluding earnings credits and/or fee waivers	Operating expenses including earnings credits and/or fee waivers	Net investment income excluding earnings oredits and/or fee waivers	Net investment including earnings credits and/or fee waivers	Portfolio turnover rate
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020	\$23.41 \$22.60 \$22.21 \$26.38 \$25.58	6.10% 10.08% (8.17)% 4.44% 6.85%	\$229,666 \$246,542 \$254,183 \$318,670 \$323,318	1.54% 1.56% 1.49% 1.43% 1.45%	1.21% 1.31% 1.40% 1.38% 1.38%	1.08% 1.03% 0.96% 0.70% 0.68%	1.41% 1.28% 1.06% 0.76% 0.75%	21.99% 3.86% 13.63% 11.31% 12.37%

* Per share amounts have been calculated using the average shares method.

(a) Performance data quoted herein does not reflect charges imposed by variable annuity contracts and variable life insurance policies issued by the life insurance companies through which the Fund is offered. If those account-level fees and expenses were reflected, performance would be lower.

Useful Shareholder Information

The Fund's Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") and shareholder reports are not available on the First Eagle Funds' website, as such information is typically provided by the insurance companies.

How to Obtain Our Shareholder Reports

You will be sent copies of the Fund's annual and semi-annual reports on a regular basis once you become a shareholder. These reports also are available to you without charge from your participating insurance company. The annual report contains a discussion of the market conditions and investment strategies that significantly affected the Fund's performance during the last fiscal year. The Fund's Financial Statements filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") on Form N-CSR also contain audited financial statements by the Fund's independent accountants.

How to Obtain Our Statement of Additional Information

The SAI is incorporated by reference in this Prospectus and includes additional information about the Fund. The SAI is available to you without charge from your participating insurance company. In addition, you may visit the SEC's website (www.sec.gov) to view the SAI and other information. Also, you can obtain copies of the SAI, after paying a duplicating fee, by e-mailing: publicinfo@sec.gov.

Distributor

FEF Distributors, LLC 1345 Avenue of the Americas New York, NY 10105

How to Reach First Eagle Variable Funds

Send all shareholder inquiries and requests for other information to: First Eagle Variable Funds 1345 Avenue of the Americas New York, NY 10105 You can contact us by telephone at 800.747.2008

For information on transactions and how to purchase shares, please refer to the Prospectus of the participating insurance company.

Investment Company Act File Number: 811-09092

Investment Adviser

First Eagle Investment Management, LLC 1345 Avenue of the Americas New York, NY 10105



First Eagle Investment Management, LLC 1345 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10105-0048 800.747.2008 www.firsteagle.com/individuals-home